
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

Board of Selectmen 

Meeting Minutes 

January 28, 2008 

 

Present: 

Mark Kaplan, Chair, Board of Selectmen 
Larry Ballin, Selectman 
Brian Prescott, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
 
Also Present: 

Terry Knowles, NH Attorney General’s Office (Charitable Trusts Division) 
Sandra Licks, Tracy Library Director 
Paula Wyeth, CPA 
Debbie Cross, Intertown Record 
Library Trustees:  Bob Bowers, Nancy Donnelly, Charlie Dean, Liz Meller, Judy Wallace, Shelby Blunt 

(Treasurer) 
Community Garden Committee: Sue Little, Emma Crane, Gail Goddard, Bobbie Hambley, Thea Lahti, 

Donna Ferries 
 
Mark Kaplan opened the meeting at 8 a.m., and the Selectmen addressed twelve areas of business at this 
meeting. 
 
January 14, 2008 Minutes:  Brian Prescott moved to accept. Mark Kaplan seconded. Larry Ballin 
amended “training costs” in the fifth paragraph on p.6 to read “demolition costs.”  The motion was 
amended to include that change, and as there was no further discussion of the motion, it was unanimously 
approved.  
 
Town Report Dedication:  Selectmen agreed to dedicate this year’s Town Report to Ernie Welch who 
passed away on July 6.  He provided many years of varied services to the Town and in the community.  
Jessie Levine suggested that the report could also include a separate acknowledgement of the recently 
retired Bandstand Committee. Selectmen agreed on both counts.  
 
Retirement System Litigation: The packet of information distributed to Selectmen for this meeting 
included the January 17 letter from the three Executive Directors of the Local Government Center to 
Cities, Towns, SAUs, School Districts and County governments, regarding proposed litigation of the 
unfunded mandate question.  Ref. NH Constitution Part 1, Art. 28-a, regarding unfunded mandates. 
 
(Some background: During legislative session 2007, HB653 was passed, and it (a) established a new 
funding methodology to increase employer contributions rates, (b) established a temporary moratorium on 
funds going into the special account with the purpose of shoring up the corpus of the State pension fund, 
(c) requires appointment of a local government management representative to the NHRS Board of 
Trustees.   During the session, the NHRS received the legal opinion that funds from the “special medical 
account” may no longer be used to reimburse the “corpus” of the retirement pension fund as has been the 
policy in the past, and that those subsidies must now be paid through employer contributions. In its 
1/17/08 letter, LGC pointed out that this will require employer contributions of an additional $128-billion 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 2 of 10 
 
over the next biennium, or a 45% increase in employer costs over and above normal employer 
contributions.  It is this legal opinion that LGC now proposes to challenge.)   
 
LGC estimates that the cost of the challenge including possibly hiring specialized pension counsel and 
actuaries will be about $500,000, and it is asking each municipal entity to contribute one-half of 1% of 
what it paid into the NHRS in fiscal year 2007 toward the cost of this litigation.  Jessie Levine said that 
that would be $712.84 for New London.  She pointed out that even if they lose this litigation, it will serve 
to publicize the high costs of NH’s retirement system, and point out the fact that it is really the public 
(taxpayers) who will be paying for future fixes.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked if New London’s Town Counsel has weighed in on this. Jessie Levine said yes, and 
added that LGC intends to use Bart Mayer and Upton & Hatfield as counsel for this case.   
 
Larry Ballin asked if she’s heard anything from other towns on this.  Jessie Levine said at the recent 
Municipal Advocacy Committee meeting at LGC, about 30 towns were represented and were in 
unanimous agreement to take this forward. 
 
At this meeting, the three New London Selectmen concurred and approved designating legal funds for 
this lawsuit.   
 
Tracy Library Open House:  Selectmen have received a request from Library Director Sandra Licks for 
permission to serve wine at the Library open house on February 12.  This request is made pursuant to 
Section 4 of the Town’s Alcohol Ordinance.  Mark Kaplan asked to confirm that this has been allowed in 
the past.  Larry Ballin moved to approve. Brian Prescott seconded. No further discussion. Motion 
unanimously approved.  
 
Joint Sewer Meeting, January 31: Jessie Levine said she hopes this will include discussion of the 
capital improvements plan. Selectmen agreed and Mark Kaplan pointed out that there are really two parts 
to that: (a) what will be done, equipment needed, etc, and (b) how to raise the money. 
 
Sewer Lagoon Project: Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that this involves the three open lagoons on 
the back of the sewer department’s property.  On Thursday, Richard Lee, Peter Stanley, and Jessie Levine 
met with Collis Adams of the DES Wetlands Bureau and with Mike Rainey of the Residual Management 
Division.  To fill the lagoons, the Town will be required to file a minimum impact wetlands permit 
application, since the soils in the lagoons have become hydric (indicating wetlands) over time. Overall, 
however, there will be a benefit to the environment.  The state continues to recommend that the sludge be 
removed from the lagoons and either spread on site or removed by a sludge removal company.  Removal 
would obviate the need for long-term monitoring and increase the opportunities to use the site. 
 
She went on to say that although federal law requires lagoons to be capped after a certain number of years 
of non-use (and it’s been 30 years for these lagoons), the state has indicated that they would allow this to 
conclude over the next three to five years.  At this meeting, she said she thinks there will really be a 
minimum of engineering costs here—just provision of a cross-section of what the property will look like 
when work is completed. Other than the minimum impact application, they need only submit a letter 
describing the plan to the State.  The Zoning Administrator can work with DES in developing a plan, and 
the Public Works Department can do much of the work.  Options include leaving the sludge in, but that 
would require continued monitoring over many years. Or they can remove the sludge and spread it over 
the top of adjacent land, or have it hauled away.  The lagoons will be filled with clean ditching material.  
Larry Ballin asked about the ditching material. Could sand from Shepherd Pit be used? Jessie Levine said 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 3 of 10 
 
she does not think there is enough sand there, but they are always accumulating ditching material from 
other sources, and it would not contain solid waste or litter material.   
 
QuickLink: Larry Ballin passed along a suggestion from Noel Weinstein that a second pie chart be 
included showing the proposed budget increases. Jessie Levine said that will be included in the budget 
packet handed out at the public hearing and at Town Meeting, and she will add it here as well.  
 
She went on to say that the information block on the master plan is drawn from the Planning Board’s 
submission for the Town Report. She said she is reluctant to make too much of an invitation to the public 
at this point, as there is no firm schedule yet. Larry Ballin agreed that they are at the point where they 
have got to start heading toward the committee level.  At Tuesday’s meeting, they will be discussing 
inclusion of energy and technology in the master plan.  
 
Stump Dump Update: Jessie Levine reminded Selectmen that back in 2003, the Town received notice 
from the State DES that it (New London) would be required to close the stump dump as they were 
required to close the landfill.  In 2004, the Town received another letter from the State that said, in so 
many words: “Never mind, we are in process of redoing our regulations.”  In the meantime, the Town has 
continued groundwater and well monitoring through the on-site test pits.  
 
Now, this month, New London has received another letter from the State expressing concern about the 
elevated levels of magnesium found in the tests, but, she noted, those were only in the March and October 
tests.  She recommends requesting another year of testing before taking action.  In response to Larry 
Ballin’s question, she said the test pits are located up-gradient from the salt storage and she does not 
know what impact salt storage would have on the magnesium levels.  Also, in response to Larry Ballin’s 
question, she said the results of tests on adjacent DOT property showed lower levels of magnesium than 
the tests on the Town’s property.  Nevertheless, Selectmen agreed that if the State expects the Town to go 
much further with this, the proximity of the DOT property should come into play.   
 
Committee Reports: Jessie Levine reported that at the last Budget Committee meeting, the Committee 
agreed after thorough discussion, to increase the proposed appropriation for COA to the requested 
$20,000, and to add a recommendation for $650 for energy testing at Tracy Library, specifically, the 
blower door test. They also agreed to add $10,700 to the budget for cleaning this building and Whipple, in 
light of several factors presented by Sodexho (see Budget Committee minutes of Jan. 16, 08).  Finally, at 
that meeting, the Budget Committee agreed to recommend a 4.5% employee raise, which could be 3% 
COLA, and 1.5% discretionary merit increase.  That is to say, the Town will budget for 4.5% increase 
across the board with the understanding that not everyone will get the 4.5% increase.   
 
The public hearing on the 2008 budget will be held on February 11 at 7 p.m. 
 
Tracy Library Board of Trustees: Library Trustee Bob Bowers explained that they have recently been 
advised by Terry Knowles that pursuant to RSA 202-A:11, the Library’s treasurer must be one of the 
trustees.  Coincidental with learning this, the Trustees heard from Emily Jones that since she is not 
planning to run for another term on the Board of Trustees, she would be willing to resign now, thus 
allowing current treasurer Shelby Blunt to be appointed to fill her vacancy. Shelby Blunt has agreed to fill 
the term, and has also indicated a willingness to run for the full term in March.  They were present at this 
meeting to request that the Board of Selectmen use its authority per RSA 202-A:10 to appoint her to this 
vacant seat.   
 
Larry Ballin asked to clarify that the Selectmen really do have the authority to appoint someone to 
complete the term (though Library Trustees are elected at Town Meeting, and are otherwise independent 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 4 of 10 
 
of the Board of Selectmen).  Jessie Levine agreed that there is a bit of irony in that the Library Trustees 
are independent except when there is a vacancy at which time the Selectmen have authority to appoint.   
 
Larry Ballin moved to appoint Shelby Blunt to fill Emily Jones’ seat for the duration of the term.  Brian 
Prescott seconded.  There was no further discussion, and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Miscellaneous (short) Items of Business: 
 
1. Jessie Levine said that the Energy Committee will be meeting on Tuesday evenings now, rather than 

Monday.  
 
2. She reported that she will be submitting a letter to the residents on gravel roads who expressed a 

desire for paving last year, to update those residents on the Budget Committee’s proposed 
recommendation.   

 
3. In response to Mark Kaplan’s question, she said they have not yet received from the State the POW 

MIA flag. When they do, it will be flown.  
 
4. Selectmen signed the following items: 

o Disbursement voucher for week of 1/28/08 – Approved. 

o Application for use of Whipple Memorial Town Hall by New London Recreation Dept. for 
Recreational Dance classes, Tuesdays Jan. 22 – May 27t 2 sessions 10:00-11:00 a.m. & 1:00-2:00 
p.m.– Approved. 

o Application for use of Whipple Memorial Town Hall by Kearsarge Community Band for a 
concert on Friday March 28, 2008 6:00-10:00 p.m. (20-30 people including band members) – 
Approved. 

Discussion re: Library Laws (specifically as applicable to maintenance of the Community Garden 

at Tracy Library): 
 
Copies of NH RSA Chapter 202-A Public Libraries, as well as question and answer correspondence 
between Library Trustee Bob Bowers and Terry Knowles of the Attorney General’s Office, a 
memorandum dated November 9, 2007 from Sue Little to Jessie Levine and the Board of Selectmen, and 
a chronology of activities and discussions re: the Community Garden at Tracy Library, were distributed to 
all attendees at this meeting. 
 
The question before the meeting today was, who should assume responsibility for the on-going 
maintenance of this recently restored historic garden? 
 
Library Trustee Bob Bowers opened the discussion by saying that the original deed conveying the 
property from Jane Tracy to the Town of New London states that the purpose of the conveyance is to 
assure that the property is to be used as a Library. He said that in his research, he found that at that time, a 
Board of Library Trustees already existed, and the Town was giving money to that.  Town reports refer to 
the “transfer of funds.”  In response to Mark Kaplan’s question, he said that it was Jane A. Tracy herself, 
not her estate, who conveyed the deed.  Then Mark Kaplan went on to say that at the same time, she 
conveyed a  corpus of money which is now a trust fund managed by the New London Board of Trustees 
of the Trust Funds.  That Board conveys the income from the trust to the Library every month.   
 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 5 of 10 
 
Bob Bowers again made the point that the Library property was deeded to the Town with the proviso that 
the Trustees of the Library would operate the property as a library.  Now, some questions have arisen 
regarding maintenance responsibility for the restored historic garden.  The chronology indicates the 
restoration was overseen (and funds for it raised) by a Restoration Committee consisting of two Library 
Trustees, several New London Garden club members and a New London resident.   
According to an un-dated chronology submitted by Sue Little, Chair of the Committee for the Community 
Garden at Tracy Library (to be referred to as “Garden Committee” for the remainder of these minutes), 
she presented the plan to the Trustees of the Library with the condition that the Library budget include an 
appropriation for the garden, specifically for hiring a professional gardener to do much of the work as 
well as oversee the working volunteers.  The funds were held by the Library Trustees and expended as 
requested by the Garden Committee.  According to Sue Little’s memo, in 2003, the Library Director 
indicated that she would “no longer” include that in the Library’s budget, so the Garden Committee 
approached the Town.  At the March 2004 Town Meeting, voters approved appropriation of a $7500 
garden fund.  In subsequent years, however, the Budget Committee has recommended that this amount be 
reduced with Garden Committee fundraising making up the difference, until 2010 when the Town 
appropriation would go to zero.  In 2005, the Garden Committee asked to be made a subcommittee of the 
Library Trustees, and both that Committee and Friends of the Library were made subcommittees. It was 
not until August of 2007 that they learned that operating in this way is not legal.   
 
Terry Knowles explained that the problem is that that renders the committees somewhat “free-floating” 
and they have no statutory authority to take taxpayers dollars even for charitable purposes. There are a 
number of related problems including with accountability.   
 
Brian Prescott asked why the decision was made in 2003 to no longer include maintenance for the garden 
in the Library budget.  Sue Little said that she thought Director Ginny Foose felt that including it would 
render Tracy Library’s budget disproportionate to budgets of other libraries its size.  This occurred after 
the restoration had been agreed upon, and at the time of the restoration commencing, the Library Trustees 
understood that a professional gardener would be needed every year.  
 
Terry Knowles presented four options to consider: 
 
1. The Library can resume responsibility for the garden. It does not need to be a 501(c)(3) to do this. It 

would receive and hold funds raised for the purpose of maintaining the garden. Those funds would be 
part of the library budget, and there would be a memorandum of understanding that the Garden 
Committee members could use them to do what they need to do.  However, Library Trustees cannot 
appoint a subcommittee of their board, but the Board of Selectmen could appoint a subcommittee of 
the Trustees. 

 
2. The Committee for the Community Garden at Tracy Library can become a 501(c)(3) organization.  

They would file paperwork with the NH Secretary of State and the IRS. Cost would be roughly $750, 
and on-going requirement would be the filing of an annual financial report with the Attorney 
General’s office.  The benefits to doing this are that it would allow the Garden Committee to continue 
to accept taxpayer money, to raise funds, and to apply for grants.   

 
3. She suggested the easiest option to follow might be for the Board of Selectmen to appoint members as 

an official subcommittee of the Selectmen with all funds raised to be held by the Trustees of the Trust 
Funds. This, too, would require a memo of understanding addressing accountability and spelling out 
the Committee’s relationship with the library. The Trustees of the Trust Funds can establish a fund for 
this purpose.  In response to Nancy Donnelly’s question, she confirmed that the Selectmen can 
appoint such a subcommittee, but the Library Trustees cannot.  Jessie Levine asked if this is made a 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 6 of 10 
 

subcommittee of the Board of Selectmen with funds managed by the Trustees of the Trust Funds, who 
has the authority to expend the funds. Terry Knowles said the Garden Committee would be able to 
expend its funds (Trustees of Trust Funds would release) and the Garden Committee would report 
expenditures and revenues each year.  Sue Little asked about the possibility of the Garden 
Committee/subcommittee submitting its annual budget to the Trustees of the Trust Funds, receiving 
the income for that year, then keeping its own checkbook (rather than submitting separate requests to 
the Trustees of the Trust funds throughout the year). Terry Knowles said that could be done.  Mark 
Kaplan asked what if a donor specified that money is to go for the garden specifically, not to the 
library. Terry Knowles said that would be okay. Mark Kaplan asked to confirm that without being a 
501(c)(3) organization on its own, the Garden Committee does not have the legal authority to take 
care of its own funding needs to maintain the garden. Terry Knowles confirmed that, and said they are 
now trying to figure out what legal hat to wear.   

 
4. Another option would be to partner with an existing 501(c)(3)  fiscal agent, such as the New London 

Historical Society.  They would then hold and expend the money, and file fiscal reports.     
 
Sue Little asked what responsibility the Town and Library do have for the Library grounds. Jessie Levine 
opined that when the Town accepted the property, it also accepted responsibility for its maintenance.  
Terry Knowles confirmed that, saying that in accepting the property, the Town actually entered into a 
contract accepting responsibility for the property’s maintenance at the same time.  That is why she always 
cautions towns to consider carefully the acceptance of a gift.   Jessie Levine said, but is that responsibility 
for maintenance of the property as it was at the time of the gift, or as it is now after the garden 
restoration?  And Bob Bowers added that the conveying deed contains only one line referring to how the 
property is to be kept. That line is: “to be used as a library.”  They don’t know how the grounds were at 
the time of the gift in 1918.  He said the garden has only recently been restored to the original Olmsted 
design. Is the library required to maintain it as it was in 1918, or as it is now having been restored to that 
original Olmsted design?  Terry Knowles said if the deed is not specific there, then the Town is only 
required to do basic maintenance, mowing, any minor maintenance tasks, and to assure safety.   
 
Brian Prescott asked about the difference between regular library grounds maintenance and the garden 
maintenance. Sue Little said the library does have a line in its budget of $1000 for maintenance which is 
not enough to do it all. Larry Ballin asked if any part of that $1000 benefits the garden now. Everyone 
agreed that the library does have one full time maintenance employee.  He has been told he can mow 
around the garden, but that the garden itself will be tended by the professional gardener and the 
volunteers.   
 
Sue Little returned to discussion of the financial end of this maintenance responsibility.  She said it was 
the Garden Committee’s intention to have the Town contribute some of that cost, while the Committee 
continued its own fundraising efforts and contributed some of those raised funds to the garden 
maintenance but putting most into a trust.  The objective was to eventually be able to support the garden 
entirely with income from that trust.  She pointed out that if the Town had not begun decreasing its 
contribution, they may have had as much as $60,000 or $70,000 in that fund by now.   
 
Larry Ballin asked if the Garden Committee became a 501(c)(3), would it lease the garden property from 
the Town?  He asked, what about liability.  Terry Knowles said if they become a 501(c)(3), it would be 
for the purpose of raising money for the garden, and they would have to work out issues as liability in a 
Memorandum of Understanding.  She suggested in that instance, they would talk with Town Attorney.  
Sue Little said becoming a 501(c)(3) would not be the Garden Committee’s first choice.  They would like 
to be taking on less financial responsibility for the garden maintenance as time goes on.  The objective 
was to build the trust to the point where its income could support the garden.   



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 7 of 10 
 
 
Larry Ballin asked if the Garden Committee assumed that the Town would contribute indefinitely. Sue 
Little said yes, unless the Budget Committee voted otherwise.  She said it is hard to understand why the 
Budget Committee says this should be supported entirely with private money.  She pointed out that the 
current membership of the Board of Library Trustees is different than the membership of the Board that 
voted for the restoration of the garden. Jessie Levine said that only Town Meeting can make a 
“permanent” decision (and even that can be changed at future town meetings). 
   
Jessie Levine went on to agree that at one time the Library Trustees agreed to the restoration of the 
garden, but she said that at that time, the Board of Selectmen and the Budget Committee made clear their 
concern that  it not become an on-going expense to the Town. The Budget Committee recommended an 
appropriation that year with the understanding it was to decline every year until it is out of the Town 
budget.  Fundraising for garden maintenance is up to those who wish to keep the garden at the restored 
level.  Sue Little said the Garden Committee’s only expectation from the Town has been to support the 
hiring of the professional gardener.  She reminded everyone that there was Town-wide support for the 
restoration of the garden. If it is not maintained, it will dissolve, and that $100,000 will go down the tube.   
 
Brian Prescott asked what the Library’s objection is to running this through the Library’s budget. Bob 
Bowers said he has no objection as long as there is some understanding that if and when the fundraising is 
insufficient to continue maintenance of the garden, that cost does not fall back on the Library itself.  He 
asked what responsibility the Trustees have for continued maintenance (of the historic garden) and for 
assuring funds are available for it.  Thea Lahti said the Garden Committee’s goal has been to have funds 
to cover the cost of the professional gardener. They never intended to have a time when there would not 
be volunteers working at the Community Garden. Jessie Levine asked if the Garden Committee 
established a fund to include paying a professional gardener, who would oversee that gardener and 
manage the volunteers. Terry Knowles said the Garden Committee would unless that committee 
dissolves, and then it would become the responsibility of whoever holds the money.   
 
She said that her recommendation would be for this to become a permanent committee of the town that 
would have the authority to carry out the wishes of the donors.  Bob Bowers said he does not see this as a 
responsibility of the Library Trustees.  Larry Ballin asked if the Library has a mission statement. Bob 
Bowers said yes, and it does not include a reference to garden maintenance. 
 
Mark Kaplan said he feels that the three groups: Selectmen, Library Trustees, and Garden Committee 
need to consider all this before making a decision.  His concern is if it falls to the Town, then the Town 
will do only the minimum, and the grounds under the restored garden will return to what they were before 
the project began.  He agreed that the ideal is to have a trust fund, income of which will support garden 
maintenance entirely.  Sue Little reiterated that that is the Garden Committee’s intention.  She said she 
did not feel that the Library Trustees would have gone ahead with this in the first place if they did not feel 
money would be available for maintenance of the restored garden.  Mark Kaplan said that in the 
beginning, the Selectmen were told the Town’s contribution would be less each year. Sue Little disagreed 
with that.  Larry Ballin asked what will happen if the Town says it does not want to support this 
financially.  Sue Little said that is unlikely; they have had a lot of support for the garden from 
Townspeople.  Larry Ballin said this Board of Selectmen cannot commit future Boards of Selectmen.   
 
At this point, Terry Knowles proposed a fifth option: If the Board of Selectmen appoints a Committee 
now, that could serve as an incubator.  Perhaps then, two or three years later, it could become a 501(c)(3) 
and stand on its own.   
 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 8 of 10 
 
Bob Bowers reiterated his concern that the Library not be obliged to maintain the garden above normal 
grounds maintenance level.  More precisely, the Library should not be required to provide maintenance, 
cost of which exceeds funds available.  Terry Knowles agreed that the Town is only responsible for basic 
maintenance on its property—mowing and safety issues.   
 
Judy Wallace raised the question of insurance. She said the Library already has insurance on the property.  
If the Garden Committee is not officially recognized, are its volunteers covered by that insurance.  Jessie 
Levine said that she does not think that volunteers are covered by Town insurance for personal injury.  
The Town has property liability. In other words, if a volunteer does something to Town property that 
causes a problem, the Town’s property liability insurance would cover that, but personal injuries to the 
volunteers themselves are not covered by Town insurance.   
 
Nancy Donnelly asked to confirm that only as a 501(c)(3) can the Garden Committee apply for grants. 
With the other options, it can do fundraising, but not apply for grants. Correct. 
 
Sue Little asked if the Garden Committee becomes an official committee of the town, who would sign 
things as the fundraising letter. Terry Knowles said the Garden Committee would be raising funds for 
purpose of the garden, and would sign the letter. She suggested the Selectmen would be made aware of 
the fundraising.  Sue Little asked to confirm that there would still be the requirement for a public hearing 
to accept any gift over $5000. Yes, and that holds true for any Town committee or board.  
 
Thea Lahti asked if there is any disadvantage to option 5 described above. Terry Knowles said this is 
purely a policy decision. The three groups must decide what is best here, and she can help with process.  
Paula Wyeth asked if there is any problem with obtaining 501(c)(3) status for so narrow a purpose.  Terry 
Knowles said, not at all.   
 
Donna Ferries asked if it were an official committee of the Town, could it still be called the Community 
Garden at Tracy Library, and would donors still make out checks to that name.  Terry Knowles said yes, 
if the Board of Selectmen okays that.   
 
She added that there would be other questions to decide. For example, is the professional gardener an 
independent contractor or an employee of the town? Sue Little said she is paid as an independent 
contractor, $6000 per season, or $35 per hour.   
 
Both she and Thea Lahti made the point that the Garden Committee needs a resolution of this as soon as 
possible as they would like to begin sending out fundraising letters in early April. Mark Kaplan asked 
what their feelings are.  Sue Little said the Garden Committee’s preference is that the Town continue to 
support maintenance at $5000 a year, and not reduce that number each year while the Garden Committee 
continues to contribute to the trust fund itself.  She said again that the Garden Committee does not feel a 
501(c)(3) status is best . It would be best to function as an official committee of either the library or the 
town.  She said she feels it would be important to stay connected to the Library.  Mark Kaplan reminded 
everyone that the property belongs to the Town.  He feels that even if the Garden Committee is appointed 
as an official Committee of the Town (with Trustees of Trust Funds managing the money), the Garden 
Committee would still have interaction with Library trustees.   
 
Larry Ballin said he needs proof that the garden maintenance is a necessary municipal obligation.  Sue 
Little said she does not feel this would be a burden to the Town.  Larry Ballin asked who would take 
physical responsibility for the garden, should private funding dry up and taxpayer willingness to support 
it dry up as well.  Sue Little said if the money is not there, the garden will dissolve.   
 



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 9 of 10 
 
Brian Prescott asked if fundraising would be easier if this were a Library committee rather than a Town 
committee. Sue Little said donors would not care, as they could specify where their contributions are to 
go. It would still be the Community Garden at Tracy Library.   
 
Hearing no further comments or questions, Mark Kaplan closed this public meeting at 10:25.  Further 
discussions will be on the agenda for the February 11 Selectmen’s meeting, and all deliberations are open 
to the public.   
 
Before adjourning their meeting, Selectmen informally reviewed the discussion. Mark Kaplan said he is 
inclined to appoint the Garden Committee as an official committee of the town, as long as the 
memorandum of understanding spells out that if the Garden Committee’s fundraising goes to heck in a 
hand-basket, the garden will return to how it was before.  The Town will simply mow back there.  
 
Larry Ballin said he likes the idea of their becoming a 501(c)(3) organization and standing on their own.  
His concern is that people not perceive this as an on-going responsibility of the Town, and setting 
precedent.  Mark Kaplan agreed, but, again, all that could be made clear in a memorandum of 
understanding. He proposed that the memorandum of understanding spell out that the Town will 
contribute $4000 to garden maintenance each year and that the Garden Committee continue fundraising, 
$4000 of which will also be given to that year’s garden maintenance, and balance will go into the Trust 
fund.   
 
Larry Ballin said his understanding is that this was supposed to be self-supporting right away, and that in 
the first year they needed maintenance from the Town.  Brian Prescott said he, too, is worried about 
maintenance falling back on the Town.  Jessie Levine said that when the original project came before the 
Selectmen, that Board made clear it is not their project.  Then it became a Library responsibility for a 
short time.   
 
She agreed that the Garden Committee would do better with fundraising if it was an official committee of 
the Library, but the Selectmen cannot force the Library to take this on. The Selectmen cannot appoint a 
subcommittee of the Library Trustees that the Library Trustees do not want.   
 
Larry Ballin asked if the Selectmen appoint an official committee, must they appoint the same members 
as are on the (unofficial) Garden Committee now.  Jessie Levine suggested they’d be hard pressed to find 
such dedicated volunteers in the future.  She added that if the volunteers discontinue, this work will fall 
upon the Public Works Department and herself.  Mark Kaplan reminded everyone that the Town accepted 
the property and its maintenance responsibility. Agreed, but Jessie Levine said her concern is that the 
physical plant there needs so much work, it seems strange to designate resources for the garden.  And 
Larry Ballin said the Library’s mission statement does not include a provision to maintain an historic 
garden.   
 
Returning to discussion of the options, Brian Prescott said, all things considered, he would now agree 
with Larry Ballin that a 501(c)(3) status is the best for this purpose.  Jessie Levine asked about Terry 
Knowles’ fifth option—to appoint an official committee with the memorandum of understanding spelling 
out a time frame. For example, the MOU could state that the committee is to have its papers for 501(c)(3) 
status filed no later than January 1, 2009.  That would allow them time to raise money this spring, and get 
papers in order for their 501(c)(3).  Larry Ballin said the memorandum of understanding should address a 
number of questions, such as length of term for each member.   
 
Jessie Levine will contact Town Counsel about this.  She will talk to him about a memorandum of 
understanding and how that can be worded to address all potential downsides.   



Board of Selectmen   
January 28, 2008 
Page 10 of 10 
 
 
The subject will be on the Selectmen’s meeting agenda for February 11.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:45 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Sarah A. Denz 
Recording Secretary 


